


MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

THRU: ERIN REINDERS, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER
FROM: WILLIAM HOMKA, AICP - DIRECTOR OF PLANNING
DATE: APRIL 19,2017

RE: OUNALASHKA CORPORATION TIDELAND LEASE AMENDMENT
(RESOLUTION 2017-33)

SUMMARY: This is the first amendment to the lease of ATS 1492 adopted by Resolution 2016-34,
amending a lease between Unalaska and the Ounalashka Corporation (OC) to implement a gradual rate
increase over five (5) years. The ultimate goal is to reach the $18,600 annual lease rate outlined in the
previously approved original lease agreement. Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2017-33 and to
amend the lease accordingly.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The current City Manager Regulations for Tidelands Leasing,
License, Exchange or Sale (“Regulations”) were endorsed by the City Council on April 24, 2012. A tideland
lease between the City of Unalaska and Ounalashka Corporation (OC) was approved by City Council
Resolution 2016-34 on July 26, 2016. City Council received and discussed a letter from OC and
representatives from the businesses subleasing the tideland requesting a phased in approach to the lease rate
increase at the April 11, 2017 Council meeting. Council directed staff to bring forward an amendment to
the lease agreement to address this request.

BACKGROUND: In April 2016, OC submitted an application
to lease the proposed tideland area, filling out the standard forms
and paying the required fee, as outlined in the Regulations. OC
had previously leased ATS 1492 from the City, but the lease
expired in July 2015. The lease was approve d in January of 2016,
and finalized in August. All of the terms of the approved lease
were written to follow the Regulations. According to the
Regulations, the annual rent set at 10% of the value of the
property. The property was appraised by MacSwain Associates,
LLC, who found the value to be $186,000, resulting in the annual
initial lease rate to be set at $18,600. This rate will be adjusted
every 5 years if an appraisal determines a new value for the
property. The map to the right shows the leased area.

DISCUSSION: City Council received and discussed a letter
from OC and representatives from the businesses subleasing the
tideland requesting a phased in approach to the lease rate increase




at the April 11, 2017 Council meeting. This approach would allow for the business to better adjust to the
rate change from the previous lease to this new one. Council directed staff to bring forward an amendment
to the recently approved lease agreement to address this request.

This amendment proposes a gradual rate increase over five (5) years to reach the city’s proposed rate of
$18,600.00 annually. The rates would increase according to the following table:

TABLE 1
Year 1 - $ 3,720
Year 2 - $ 7,440
Year 3 - $11,160
Year 4 - $14,880
Year 5 - $18,600

The only term being amended in this Resolution 2017-33 and this lease amendment are the incrementally
increasing rates, beginning at § 3,720 in year one and increasing by approximately § 3,700 each year to
$18,600 in year five. The first year’s rent would be for 2016.

Resolution 2017-33 has been drafted by Staff to approve the first amendment to ATS-1492 approved by
Resolution 2016-34.

ALTERNATIVES: If the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to reject Resolution
2017-33 as is, they may disapprove or modify the amendment.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The annual rent is proposed to increase from § 3,720 in year 1 to
$18,600 by year five. This rate may be adjusted every 5 years if an appraisal determines a new value for the
property in accordance with the original agreement and the Regulations. Unless a new five (5) year
reappraisal increases the property value, the city will collect $499,700 over the lease period. This is § 58,300
less than the original total of $ 558,000 proposed for 30 years. OC will be responsible for property tax on
the leased parcel, which has potential to increase if new development does occur. As described in the lease,
the incremental rate increases will be based on appraisal of the lease property only, and will not include
improvements on the property.

LEGAL: The lease was developed in consultation with the City Attorney.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2017-33.

PROPOSED MOTION: I make the motion to approve Resolution 2017-33

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: I recommend approval of Resolution 2017-33

Attachments:
1) City Council Approved Resolution 2016-34
2) Signed Lease Agreement
3) Draft First Amendment to Lease Agreement



FIRST AMENDMENT TO
CITY OF UNALASKA
TIDELAND LEASE AGREEMENT
ATS No. 1492
FOR CITY OWNED TIDELANDS

This First Amendment to City of Unalaska Tideland Lease Agreement ATS No. 1492
(“First Amendment to Lease Agreement”) is an amendment of the Lease Agreement
entered into on the 29™ day of August, 2016 between the City of Unalaska (“Lessor”)
and Ounalashka Corporation (“Lessee”).

This First Amendment to Lease Agreement is made and entered into this __ day of

, 2017, between the City of Unalaska, a first-class Alaska municipal
corporation (“Lessor”), whose address is P.O. Box 610, Unalaska, Alaska 99685, and
Ounalashka Corporation (“Lessee”), whose address is P.O. Box 149, Unalaska, Alaska
99685

NOW THEREFORE, the Lessor and the Lessee, in consideration of the
mutual covenants and conditions stated in this Lease, agree as follows:

A. AMENDMENT. Paragraph 2 of the Lease Agreement is restated as follows:

2. Rent. The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor the following rent (“Rent”)
for the Parcel: that a rental increase stepped using a five (5) year
period of time and according to the following:

Yearl- $ 3,720
Year2- $ 7,440
Year 3 - $11,160
Year 4 - $14,880
Year 5 - $18,600

The rent is due in annual payments, in advance, on or before the Tenth (10™) Day of the
first month of the period of said rental term. The final rate of Eighteen Thousand Six
Hundred Dollars ($18,600.00) for the 1.424 Acre Parcel per annum shall be annual
rental rate thenceforth until such a time, if any, when any adjustment is made in
accordance with Paragraph 3 of this Agreement.



B. EFFECTIVE DATE. This First Amendment to Lease Agreement shall be effective
on , 2017.

OUNALASHKA CORPORATION

Christopher P. Salts, Sr., CEO

STATE OF ALASKA )
) SS.
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of
, 2017 by Christopher P. Salts, Sr., CEO of Ounalashka Corporation, an
Alaska Corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

Notary Public, State of Alaska
My Commission Expires

CITY OF UNALASKA

DAVID A. MARTINSON, CITY MANAGER
City Manager

STATE OF ALASKA )
) SS.
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2017, by DAVID A. MARTINSON, City Manager for the City of
Unalaska, a First Class Alaska Municipal Corporation, on behalf of the City of
Unalaska.

Notary Public, State of Alaska
My Commission expires

Return to:



City of Unalaska
Planning Department
P.O. Box 610
Unalaska, AK 99685



acific Stevedoring Inc.

PacSteve - Innovation in Fivheries Transporr Logiseics

To: City Council /Dutch Harbor Alaska
RE: Tideland ATS 1492

To whom it may concern,

the group of companies Ounalashka Corporation, current lease holder of ATS 1492, and
the sub-lease tenants, Pacific Stevedoring, Dunlap Towing and Unisea, respectfully request that
the increase in tideland lease fee being assessed on ATS 1492 be implemented on 3 gradual
basis instead of all at once. We feel an increase from $1000/year to $18,600 per year is far to
much to absorb all at once.

We understand the importance of the city trying to find ways to implement creative
ways to increase needed revenues, but this is a tidal tract that was created for an operation
long ago that is mostly no longer in use. This tidal tract was specifically built for a floating barge,
“Royal Aleutian” that is long gone. To ask the sublease tenants to bear this massive increase
based on current operations is hard to fathom.

That being said we respectfully request that City Councll implement the fee over a five
year period. Year one rate would be $3720, year two $7440, year three 511160, year four
$14880, year five $18600. This would allow for the sublease tenants to adjust operations
accordingly or lock for other alternatives.

Singgrely

R
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